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	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address: 
28 Central Street

	Historic Name:  
Robert & Elizabeth Boyes House

	Uses:
Present: 
single residence

	Original: 
single residence

	Date of Construction:  ca. 1855

	Source:  
deeds, historic maps

	Style/Form:   
Greek Revival

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
brick

	Wall/Trim:  
asbestos cement shingles


asphalt shingles

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  


none

	Major Alterations (with dates):  


Two-story pavilion added south side

Porch added & enclosed on south side

Asbestos-cement & asphalt shingle siding added


Window sash replaced



	Condition:  
good

	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage:  0.11 acre

	Setting:   This house is sited on the northeast corner of Central and Library Streets just west of the town’s Civil War Memorial and northeast of the town hall. The area is a mix of residential, commercial, and institutional uses.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION   

The Robert & Elizabeth Boyes House, built ca. 1855, is a story-and-a-half wood frame dwelling located on the east side of Central Street and the north side of Library Street.  The front-gable façade contains an entrance on the south side offset by two windows; two windows are evenly spaced in the upper-story gable.  The doorway is recessed; the original door and sidelights appear to be intact; however, the characteristic trabeated architrave has been removed.  The raking edge of the front gable is distinguished by a Classical entablature with a tall frieze.
The north side wall contains two windows; a gable wall dormer is centered in the south side wall.  A two-story cross-gable pavilion was later added to the rear of the south side; an enclosed porch, with an entrance on the front façade, spans and conceals the first story, terminating at the pavilion.  A one-story rear ell is an original feature.  

The house is sited on the north side of the corner lot.  The yard south and east is enclosed within a solid fence.   A paved parking area on the south side of the lot connects to library street.
The Robert & Elizabeth Boyes House, built c. 1855, is an altered example of a story-and-a-half front-gable cottage, one of the most common mid-nineteenth-century dwelling types in New England industrial towns. In spite of additions and alterations, the building is a contributing component of the village district.     
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    
Deeds and historic maps establish that the house at 28 Central Street was built between 1852 and 1856 by Georgetown master wheelwright Robert Boyes (sometimes spelled Boyce). Born in Londonderry, New Hampshire, in 1800, Boyce moved to Georgetown about 1840, when the enumeration order of the census shows him in this general neighborhood. In 1841 he married Elizabeth Chase in Georgetown, and their children Sarah Elizabeth and Warren were born in the town in 1845 and 1847 respectively. 
In April 1852 Joseph Cartwright of South Reading sold Boyes a parcel he had acquired from John C. Ramsdell of Newburyport in 1841; the deed makes no mention of buildings.
 The 1856 map of the village attaches the name “R. Boyce” to a dwelling on this site, and by 1860 Boyce is shown in the census with $2000 in real property. He lived in this house with his wife and two children and two other families, both couples with one child—those of shoemaker Benjamin Hill and of jeweler James Ham.

In 1866 Boyes and his family moved to a house on Pleasant Street in Georgetown and sold 28 Central Street to Judith Clark (1800-1887), the widow of Jeremiah Clark of Georgetown, for nine hundred dollars. Jeremiah Clark (1786-1842) was the son of Lieutenant Daniel Clark (1743/44-99), a tavern keeper in Topsfield who moved to Georgetown in 1784. In 1801 one of Clark’s other sons, Daniel, married Olive Nelson of Georgetown, the daughter of Captain Amos and Olive Dole Nelson. Lieutenant Daniel Clark’s house stood “in the angle of Main and Library Streets,”
 while his sons and their families lived further west in the area through which Clark Street was later platted. Judith Clark sold 28 Central Street in November 1867 to Mehitable Spofford Hale for $1300, $400 more than she had paid for it twenty months earlier.

The daughter of Aaron and Betsy Spofford, Mehitable Spofford Hale was the wife of carpenter John Hale Jr., whom she married in 1854; both were natives of Boxford. The 1870 census shows John Hale, Jr. with $1700 in real estate and a household of four—himself, his wife, and their children Clarence (born about 1858) and Alice (born in 1860), both born in Boxford. John and Mehitable Hale remained in the 28 Central Street house until they died, she in 1906 and he in 1914. 
In July 1918 Alice A. Schreiner of Lancaster, Pennsylvania, probably the Hale’s daughter, and John C. Hale of Tarrytown, New York, Clarence H. Hale’s son, sold 28 Central Street to Rowley dentist Frederick Green Jellison.
 Jellison had established a practice on North Street in Georgetown by 1918 and moved it by 1932 to Main Street, but he did not live at 28 Central Street. In 1930 he was renting this property to Edward Hugh Robinson, a shoe factory stock fitter who had been born in Georgeteown in 1895. In 1920 Robinson, then a shoe factory purchasing agent, was living in the Prospect Street home of his widowed mother Margaret, but by 1930 he had married, had become an oil salesman, and was living at 28 Central Street. 
Jellison sold 28 Central Street to Sarah J. Small in 1938, and from that point to 1962 the property changed hands often. In the latter year John A. and Florence E. Castle acquired 28 Central Street. John Castle was born in Lawrence in 1917, the son of cotton mill foreman Arthur Castle and his wife Lea. By 1958 he had married and was working in a paper mill and living in his native city. The 1983 Lawrence directory shows him as an electrician at the city’s Brooks School and resident of Georgetown; his son Kevin, a kitchen helper at the same school, is shown at 28 Central Street, where his parents presumably also lived at the time.
  The Castle family owned 28 Central Street until 1998, when John and Florence Castle’s children deeded their interest in the property to Amel Mohammed and Renee K. Baghdad. Renee Baghdad is the property’s current owner.
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28 Central Street: views from northwest (top) and southwest (bottom)
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Views from Library Street, or south (top) and west (bottom)
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National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Individually eligible             FORMCHECKBOX 
   Eligible only in a historic district
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Contributing to a potential historic district          FORMCHECKBOX 
  Potential historic district
Criteria:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A        FORMCHECKBOX 
    B        FORMCHECKBOX 
    C     FORMCHECKBOX 
    D

Criteria Considerations:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A      FORMCHECKBOX 
    B      FORMCHECKBOX 
   C     FORMCHECKBOX 
   D      FORMCHECKBOX 
    E      FORMCHECKBOX 
    F       FORMCHECKBOX 
    G

                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
The Robert & Elizabeth Boyes House, built c. 1855, is an altered example of a story-and-a-half front-gable cottage, one of the most common mid-nineteenth-century dwelling types in New England industrial towns. In spite of additions and alterations, the building is a contributing component of the village district.     
� Joseph Cartwright, South Reading, to Robert Boyes, wheelwright, 29 April 1852, SED 705:287.


� See “Compendium of New England Descendants” on RootsWeb, � HYPERLINK "http://freepages.family.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~solongago/p342.htm#i50147" �http://freepages.family.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~solongago/p342.htm#i50147�, which contains a reproduction of an engraving of the Lieutenant Daniel Clark house.


� Robert Boyce to Judith Clark, Danvers, 19 March 1866, SED 705:287; Judith Clark to Mehitable Hale, 6 November 1867, SED 735:261.


� Alice A. Schreiner, Lancaster PA, and John C. Hale, Tarrytown, to Frederick G. Jellison, Rowley, 16 July 1918, SED 2396:447


� Frederick G. Jellison to Sarah J. Small, 27 September 1938, SED 3158:564; Ruth H. Parkhurst Cisneros and Tony F. Cisneros to John A. and Florence E. Castle, 17 October 1962, SED 4999:202; Florence E. Castle to Dianne E. Perrella, trustee Florence E. Castle Trust, 1 April 1993, SED 11869:497; John A. Castle Jr., Port Orange FL; Kevin A. Castle, Plaistow NH; Jeffrey S. Castle, Haverhill; David A. Castle, East Boston; and Dianne E. Perella, Medford, to Amel Mohammed and Renee K. Baghdad, 25 September 1998, SED 15115:406; Amel M. Baghdad, 28 Central, to Renee K. Baghdad, 28 Central, 28 September 2007,SED 27684:102.





Follow Massachusetts Historical Commission Survey Manual instructions for completing this form.

